
Enterprise WAN Network Circuits 
RFP No. 2019-17 
Addendum No. 4 

 
UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 

RFP No. 2019-17 

Enterprise WAN Network Circuits 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 4 

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

1. This Addendum contains responses to all questions related to this RFP that OWNER received by 
the January 6, 2020 deadline. See “Questions and Answers” section below. 

2. Reminder: RFPs are due on or before Wednesday, February 12, 20209, at 2:00:00 p.m., 
based on the time clock at OWNER ’s Materials Management front desk.  

  

 

QUESTIONS / ANSWERS 

The responses in this section address questions received by OWNER in reference to the above-mentioned 

RFP. They are intended to clarify information contained in the RFP Document. Some questions have been 

edited for clarity, grammar and/or spelling. 

1. What type of WAN does OWNER have in place with COX today?  Layer 1 OWS, Layer 2 MetroE, 
Layer 3 MPLS? 

Layer 3 MPLS: 

Layer 2 MetroE: 

Layer 1 OWS: 

2. Is OWNER looking to keep this same type of network? 

No, not necessarily.  We are looking for performance, uptime, and reducing operating cost.  

3. What WAN topology do you use today? (Any to Any or Point to Point) 

Primarily it is Point to Point. 

4. Since this can be awarded to multiple carriers, does OWNER intent to award the entire solution to 
different carriers, creating the wanted diversity? 

Our goal is to have divergent paths for our data so as to minimize chances for disruption of service. 
If that can be accomplished by a single PROPOSER with documented diverse paths or multiple 
PROPOSER s both will be considered. 

5. G. Proposed Solution, Section 6. Customer Service, item b. Can OWNER clarify what you are 
asking for in this question. “How have you executed infection control requirements to assure patient 
safety in other facilities?” 

We are wanting to verify that the prospective PROPOSER is familiar with following infection control 
procedures that are standard to Health Care facilities.  

6. Does OWNER plan on using RHC/HCF funds now, or in the future, for these related services and 
contracts? 

Current understanding is that these funds are available for rural markets, and I wouldn’t think Las 
Vegas would be applicable. But, if it is applicable in some way and can reduce our costs, we would 
entertain trying to take advantage of them.   
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7. Enterprise Wide Area Network (“WAN”) Circuits systems that will help the Hospital exceed patient 

expectations, improve patient perception and provide patient with the best experience. (Please 
share what is the hardware description or name for these circuits)? 

The RFP was written with the idea that prospective bidders can evaluate the existing design and 
offer up what they believe is their best solution to improve performance, deliver dependability, and 
reduce costs. Our intent was not to provide a design and see if it can be implemented. 

8. Required Quantity? 

Quantity was defined in the attachment listing locations.   

9. Each clinic will have 2 circuits, can both circuits come from the same carrier or is carrier diversity 

a requirement? 

The goal is to create divergent paths to protect us from outages; it is not requirement that it be two 
(2) different PROPOSER’s. If the same PROPOSER is used, then OWNER would need 
documentation showing divergent paths. 

10. Does OWNER need communication between Clinics? 

It is not a requirement and we don’t currently do that. It could be considered going forward and 
could be a potential value proposition to your proposal.   

11. What kind of handoffs can OWNER take:  I.E 10GB, 40GB, or 100GB? 

We are currently limited to a max of 10Gb, we will be upgrading our core infrastructure and will be 
able to accept 40Gb handoffs in the near future, but we do not have that capability yet. 

12. How many circuits terminate at the hospital data center today since it appears your network is 
setup as point to point?  

2x   10Gb  

4x   1Gb 

14x 100Mb 

1x    50Mb  

13. If multiple is this preferred verse a single handoff? 

In the past we preferred the P2P connection but with changes to technology and cost savings that 
is not a requirement. 

14. How large of a circuit can you terminate at the hospital data center?  40GB, 100GB? 

Currently 10Mb, soon to be 40Mb 

15. In the RFP you ask for 100Mb to the hospital data center and Switch data center for each class C 
circuit.  Do they need 200Mb of bandwidth total or just 100Mb to get to the active data center? 

Need two (2) disparate 100Mb circuits. Our future network plan requires two (2) same size paths 
to provide redundancy.    

16. Anything over 10Gb on the network would come as a sub-rate 100Gb handoff or we can have 
multiple 10Gb handoff’s and it would be your responsibility to load-balance traffic.  Does OWNER 
have a preference either way? 

If your cost per month is the same for 10 or 100, I would note it in the proposal and install the 100. 

17. Do the data centers run active/active or active/backup? 
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Active/Active:  

18. When you ask for diversity does this include local entrance diversity?  

Ideally yes, but may not be practical based on building layout. When it isn’t possible it should be 
noted/called out in the proposal. 

19. If we can’t provide local access/building entrance diversity should we just not bid a 2nd circuit? 

No, it is important to have two (2) circuits from each location. 

20. Can PROPOSER’s Management credentialing be done post award? 

Yes. Credentialing can be done post-award 

21. Does the type of credentialing differ from an Account Manager to a Contractor? 

Yes. The credentialing requirements differ based on the geographic location and the role the 
PROPOSER is performing on OWNER sites. 

22. Infrastructure – are you sticking with Extreme infrastructure? 

Our plan is to continue using Extreme Networks as infrastructure PROPOSER.  

23. Are you looking at any new network equipment that would require a certain type of WAN 
technology?  If so what technology would you need? 

No, the fabric network equipment we are upgrading to can make use of pretty much anything. With 
the caveat that ideally both circuits to a site need to be at the same bandwidth. 

24. Regarding Page 9: Section 4. Products and Applications Assurance Warranty. Is this required for 
any hardware deployed in the network (service provider maintains ownership of all hardware) or 
will Service Level Agreements suffice?  

We are just looking to see that the equipment deployed by the PROPOSER are covered and meet 
SLA agreements. 

25. Regarding Page 9:  Section 5. Compliance. Can you please clarify the requirements of the 
requested table/ provide a sample table?   

OWNER does not have a standard table and is open to PROPOSER’s format. 

26. Regarding Page 14: Payment Terms. Our standard is Net 30 days for payment terms, will this 
work?  

Yes 

27. Regarding Page 22:  Audits. What does the University plan to audit?  Will it include security 
controls, security policies or certifications?  

Any and all aspects of the agreement and performance including required certifications and 
expectations to meet any state, federal, or local regulations.  

28. Regarding Page 40:  EXHIBIT G / ATTACHMENT A. Do we have to submit before awarded 
contract?  

This can be submitted post award.  
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29. Regarding Page 56: Exhibit 1. If bidders are providing WAN as a service with Ethernet termination 

to OWNER LAN equipment with no managed devices, backup of OWNER data and/or OWNER 
direct access to service provider devices, will any portions of Exhibit 1 be applicable or required?   

References to SQL is part of the standard OWNER Information Technology Requirements and 
may not apply to every RFP. It is not applicable to this request. 

30. Do the clinics (class C Circuits) send/receive traffic to both Data Centers simultaneously or do 

they communicate to just ONE DATA CENTER at any given time? 

They are in active/backup. P2P using OSPF to manage the connections. In the future the plan is 
to MLAG and Switch bonding to make use of both circuits at the same time. 

31. Are partial bids permitted addressing only the Class C circuits? 

We are looking for an inclusive package, if you can only provide the Class C circuits maybe partner 
with someone so as to provide the whole package.  

32. If carrier diversity is a requirement for the clinics, can a bidder address just one of the circuits, 

leaving OWNER to obtain the other circuit separately? 

It may be considered.  It should be called out in the proposal could be a deciding factor in the 
contract being awarded.    

33. What is the current process OWNER uses to manage trouble tickets today?  How do you handle 
Network degradation and outages? 

We currently use Service Now as a ticket management system. We also monitor traffic using both 
XMC from Extreme and SolarWinds from Thwack. We have as much redundancy built into the 
network as we can get, so outages have thankfully been few and far between.  

34. What Network visibility does OWNER have today in terms of managing WAN links? 

XMC from Extreme Networks, and SolarWinds from Thwack are our primary tools.  

35. How do you manage and monitor your application performance and priorities over your network? 

XMC, Extreme Analytics, and SolarWinds. We have traffic classified with QoS, but so far internal 
traffic has not been an issue.  

36. Does your current carrier or carriers open up proactive tickets for service degradation and outages, 
or is this the sole responsibility of OWNER? 

Yes, our current PROPOSER s are proactive and advise us on any service degradations. 

37. What is the average network utilization of each of your WAN links today? 

Our internet usage pegs out the 100Mb connection twice a day. We usually hover around 60Mbs 
during business hours. The 10Gb circuit to switch usually around 20-30Mbs, except at night when 
Commvault begins backup procedures as the local DC backs to Switch and the Switch DC backups 
up to OWNER. Utilization can hit 70-90%. The 10Gb circuit from OWNER to Delta Point usually 
20-30%.  The 100Mb links to the ancillary sites usually 5-7% during business hours, but can spike 
up suddenly. 

38. What is your peak utilization of each of your WAN links currently today? 

Hard to say. Usually between 9-10am and again around 2pm. We max out the 100Mb connection.  


